Rules of Conduct for Public Meetings

No person shall be disorderly, abusive, or disruptive of the orderly conduct of the meeting. Microphones will
’ _ be muted, and webcams will be turned off for remote participants unless called upon to speak or during
P/‘ public comment period.
F— f
. CITY OF Persons shall not comment or testify without first receiving recognition from the presiding officer and stating
M l I I e rs b u rg their full name and city of residence.
A COMMUNITY LINKING During public hearings no person shall present irrelevant, immaterial, or repetitious testimony or evidence.

AGRICULTURE AND INDUSTRY
There shall be no audience demonstrations such as applause, cheering, display of signs, or other conduct

This meeﬁng is being recorded for public review disruptive of the meeting. If online participant(s) disrupt the meeting, the participant(s) microphone and
on the Cny of Millersburq website webcam will be turned off. If disruption confinues, the participant(s) will be removed from the meeting.

PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING
Millersburg City Hall
4222 NE Old Salem Road, Millersburg, OR 97321
December 6, 2022 @ 6:00 p.m.

Planning Commission meetings are in-person. Remote access continues to be available. Instructions for
joining are at https://www.cityofmillersburg.org/bc-pc/page/planning-commission-meeting. If you need
additional support, please contact City Hall prior fo 5:00 p.m. on Monday, December 5, 2022.

Meeting link to join via computer:
https://aspenuc.accessionmeeting.com/j/1167491335
Phone number to join meeting: 503-212-9900
Meeting ID: 116 749 1335

A. CALLTO ORDER
B. ROLL CALL
C. MEETING MINUTE APPROVAL

1) Approval of November 1, 2022, Planning Commission Minutes
Action:

D. PUBLIC HEARING
File No: DC 22-05 Adoption of a new Housing Chapter for the Comprehensive Plan.
Comprehensive Plan Amendment DC 22-05 proposes to revise and replace the
Comprehensive Plan Housing Chapter. Grant funding was provided by the DLCD for this
effort. This is infended to be the first step in a full revision of the City’'s Comprehensive
Plan. Thisis a legislative item.
Action:

E. PLANNING UPDATE

F. ADJOURNMENT

Upcoming Meeting(s):
https://www.cityofmillersburg.org/calendar

If you have a disability that requires accommodation to attend or participate, please nofify the Millersburg City Hall
in advance by calling 458-233-6300.

Page 1 of 20



Millersburg

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
4222 NE Old Salem Road
Millersburg OR 97321
November 1, 2022

6:00 pm
A. CALL TO ORDER: Commission Vice-Chair Wil Canate called the meeting to order at 6:02
p.m.
B. ROLL CALL:

Members Present:  Vice-Chair Wil Canate, Commissioners Monte Ayers, Ryan
Penning, Caryl Thomas and Jason Young

Members Absent:  Chair AnnePeltier and vacant position

Staff Present: Malft Straite, Community Development Director;
Sheena Dickerman, City Recorder; Forrest Reid, City
Attorney; Kevin Kreitman; City Manager and Janelle Booth,
Assistant City Manager.

Commission Vice-Chair Canate opened the meeting at 6:02 p.m.

C. MEETING MINUTE APPROVAL
Approval of October 4, 2022, Planning Commission Minutes

ACTION: Motion to approve the minutes as written by Commissioner Monte Ayers;
seconded by Commissioner CarylThomas.

Vice-Chair Canate: Aye
Commissioner Ayers: Aye
Commissioner Penning: Aye
Commiissioner Thomas: Aye
Commissioner Young: Aye

Motion Passed: 5/0

D. PUBLIC HEARING 6:02 p.m.
File No: SP 22-04 & CUP 22-01 Agricultural Chemical Fertilizer Storage and Distribution
Facility

Vice-Chair Canate opened the public hearing at 6:03 p.m.
City Recorder Sheena Dickerman read the disclosure statement for the public hearing.
Declarations by the Commission

No commissioners had a conflict, ex parte contact, site visit or abstained from
participating.

l|Page
Page 2 of 20



Staff Report
Community Development Director Matt Straite presented the staff report*. He described

where the project is located within the City. Currently, there is no road to the project, but
one is proposed with the application.

Straite stated that only half of the lot is proposed to be developed. The City owns the
property, but it will be leased to the applicant long term. The property is zoned General
Industrial. A portion of the proposed street is outside City limits, and the applicant has a
concurrent application with Linn County.

Straite said the applicant is proposing a new fertilizer storage and distribution facility. No
production will be conducted on site. Several structures are being proposed: a two-story
office building, an operations warehouse, a dry fertilizer building with a covered tfruck
and rail loading area, and a building that will'serve three purposes; as a maintenance
building, a lab and a covered wash pad. There is another building to serve as a liquid
fertilizer tank farm, with a fabric structure over it. There is a future warehouse shown on
the project but is not part of the current proposal.

Straite explained that the new street will connect to Conser Road NE. A portfion of the
road requires County action but will eventually become part of City limits upon future
annexation. The applicant is proposing a new rail spur and a secondary access point
south of the property for emergency use only. The access point will not be paved but will
need to support emergency vehicles.

Straite said there is no water on the site, butimprovements are planned to bring a looped
water system tothe site. This will serve the rest.of the City's property on the site. The water
will connect 10 the existing line on Conser Road and another on Arnold Road. It will cross
the railroadtracks in two different locations. The City and applicant are working with the
Railroad to gain access. The Railroad's consent is a condition of approval. There is a
sewer connection.

Straite shared that the only landscaping required is for the office building and is being
proposed. The applicant proposed 43 parking spaces. He pointed out the elevations of
the buildings.

Straite reviewed the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) and Site Plan Review criteria required
for the project. He highlighted that all areas surrounding the site, except the west, are
zoned General Industrial. The proposed structures on the east side of the property, near
the natural'area, are the lab and the office building.

Straite said the applicant submitted a traffic impact analysis that found no improvements
were required, except for the new road being constructed as part of the project. He
added that the City is proposing to build a new road, not as a part of this project, south
of NE Conser Road. Eventually, this project will use the new street, NE Transition Parkway,
which will reduce truck traffic on NE Conser Road.

Straite explained the code allows flexibility for parking if the site has room for more
parking. There is plenty of room for future parking.

Straite shared that the new proposed street would be built to rural standards, but an off-
street frail would be built in the future. He commented that only half of the site will be

2|Page
Page 3 of 20



paved. The gravel area will drain into the basin and would meet the same requirements
had it been paved.

Straite said the landscaping requirements were met, except the need for boulders where
landscaping meets gravel. A condition of approval was added to include this and some
architectural details.

Commissioner Monte Ayers asked for clarification that the City owns the property. Straite
affirmed, the applicant has a long-term lease and are responsible for construction costs.
City Manager Kevin Kreitman added the City wanted to lease City properties but found
other industries prefer to purchase and the applicant may want to purchase the property
in the future.

Commissioner Caryl Thomas asked about the length of the railroad spur. Straite pointed
it out. Thomas asked if it was operational 24hours a day. Straite referred the question to
the applicant who explained it would not be.

Applicants 6:25 p.m.

Hayden Wooten, Reece & Associates, 321 15t Avenue NE, Suite 3, Albany, OR, 97321-
stated that they would work with City staff 1o meet the Conditions of Approval. He
affirmed Straite’s location of the railroad spur. He added that the facility would not be
operational 24 hours a day.

Avyers asked for clarification that it was not.a manufacturing facility. Wooten replied that
the intent is thatall manufacturingis done off site.

Ayers asked if the fabric cover over the liquid facility for heat.

Marty Bergman, Wilbur-Ellis, 868 N Front Street, Woodburn, OR, 27071- explained that the
fabric structure was for gathering rainfall.

Thomas asked if the fertfilizer was all organic. Bergman replied that it was both organic
and conventional. He added that Wilbur-Ellis is strict on conventional fertilizers and does
not carry ammonium nitrate.

Kreitman added that the City does not allow ammonium nitrate in any facility within the
City.

Thomas asked if there was a possibility of the organic fertilizer exploding. Bergman was
unaware of any. The organic blends are all liquids.

Public Testimony in favor or opposed
None.

Vice Chair Canate closed the public hearing at 6:29 p.m.

Discussion

3|Page
Page 4 of 20



Commissioner Jason Young said he read through and with his background in science
didn't see arisk or a reaction with the different fertilizers. Canate said his concern was fire
apparatus access but with the road coming in and Albany Fire Department letter.

Kreitman stated that a couple of times a year anhydrous ammonia would be brought in
and converted info aqua ammonia and would meet federal requirements.

Young asked if that was done on site. Bergman explained that the anhydrous ammonia
is brought in on rail, it is never stored on site. It comes in several times per year. It is
converted to a liquid by adding phosphorus and water,. combining to create a fertilizer
called 10-340.

Young asked about the process. Bergman replied it is done on the railcar.

Thomas asked about the number of rairoad cars involved. Bergman replied
approximately four railcars per year. The storage on site is small and Wilbur-Ellis
intentionally keeps it small.

Canate asked what the estimated volume was. Bergman was unsure. He said four
railroad cars are brought in throughout the year and converted into several liquid tanks.
It requires a significant amount.of water.

Young asked if there was an exothermic reaction. Bergman said it was a phosphorus
conversion. Young asked what precautions were in place. Bergman replied that the
process was done by a third-party and a fremendous amount of water is used, there is
only steam. He has never heard of an explosion or flames during the process.

Young reiterated his concern for the heat being generated. Bergman explained that the
third-party is licensed to perform the process.

Canate asked if there would be fire. hydrants. Staite affirmed. Canate asked if City water
or tender would be used. Bergman replied they would be connected to City water.

Commissioner Ryan Penning asked if this was a new facility. Bergman replied it was a new
facility to distribute fertilizer. 4588 NE Castillo Drive

Lyssette Young, 4588 NE Castillo Drive, Millersburg, OR 97321- (a member of the public
requesting to ask questions during Commission discussion) asked if the third party was
licensed and bonded for the work. Bergman affirmed. Lyssette Young asked if there was
a previous risk impact analysis done. Bergman replied yes. Lysette Young asked if there
was something to show that the third-party was complying with all rules and regulations.
Bergman affirmed.

Kreitman explained that the City requires a CUP for any hazardous material, agricultural
requirements are the same as other industries. The organization must meet all federal
safety and training requirements. There are no agricultural exemptions.

Bergman explained that the concerns are why Wilbur-Ellis brings in third-party experts to
do the process.

4|Page
Page 5 of 20



Young expressed his concern about location and process due to his previous
experiences. Kreitman reiterated that they will be required to meet all safety
requirements. Bergman said everything is done by a licensed and bonded third-party.

ACTION: Motion to approve Site Development Review SP 22-04 and CUP 22-01 with
the conditions of approval make was made by Monte Ayers: seconded by
Commiissioner Ryan Penning.

Vice- Chair Canate Aye
Commissioner Canate: Aye
Commissioner Penning: Aye
Commissioner Thomas: Aye
Commissioner Young: Aye

Motion Passed: 5/0
E. Climate Friendly and Equitable Communities (CFEC) Parking Workshop 6:43 p.m.

Straite explained that the State passed the Climate Friendly and Equitable Communities.
Governor Kate Brown made. an executive order 1o make state agencies reduce
greenhouse omissions. The Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD)
are requiring cities to create climate friendly areas which are areas where mixed use is
mandated, and people can walk to everything. He shared the handout that showed
what cities must do*. For small cities the State is requiring all parking mandates be
eliminated from-the Code.

Straite said staff put a draft of what it would look like'in the Code. He believed that the
changes would have minimal impact on the City, as larger developments would provide
the parking that'is needed for their development. The one place it does have impact is
with-multi-family developments.

Straite mentioned that several cities have filed a lawsuit against the State regarding the
requirements. He explained that if the City made changes and the lawsuit won, the City
would need to undo the changes. If the City did nothing the State’s rules would go into
effect January 1, 2023. The Code would still have requirements but the City would have
to waive the requirements. He said staff recommends waiting to make Code changes
until after the lawsuit and current elections take place.

Straite said the State has three different ways to handle parking requirements, but the
other two paths are more convoluted and have a lot of drawbacks.

Ayers asked what was required for residential. Straite said the City requires two parking
spaces, except for Amanda Street or Bain street, which requires no parking. He added
that there was still a requirement for a two-car garage. Assistant City Manager Janelle
Booth added that setbacks are also required.

Canate asked about the requirement for multi-use units, and when that will be required.
Straite explained it was, once the City reaches over 5,000 in population. Once the City is
over 5,000 there is a grace period for designation of a climate-friendly area and a grace
period for changing the Code. When that happens, the City’s desire is to increase the

5|Page
Page 6 of 20



UGB at that time and designate the denser areas at that time. He added that in the
updated Housing Element for the Comprehensive Plan proposal there is a provision for
keeping the current 10,000-square-feet lots north of NE Conser Road and west of NE Old
Salem Road as a designated protected area.

Thomas mentioned a previous discussion on driveways width and parking spaces (Code
update) and asked how the new regulations would impact that. Straite explained that
the City chose the States Plan A because there wouldn't be a change but if the City
choose plan B or C the State becomes very involved. He shared an example of the City
would have to require businesses to give their staff funds, $80, if they choose not to drive
to work.

Booth added that staff saw this coming and changed the requirements for driveway to
40-feet frontage period. That way the code would require a width of frontage for each
single-family home, and not a specific numiber of parking spaces in front of a house.

Straite added that this would be a requirement for number of spaces, the State would
allow the City to regulate how the parking lot looks and functions.

Thomas asked if the City would control the size of parking spaces. Straite affirmed.

Young asked what the consequences were for doing nothing. Straite explained that the
State provisions would take over on January 1, 2023. The table in the Code would cease
to be enforceable.

Straite added that many of the Stafte’'s new requirements, such as shade and free
requirementsin parking areas, are already-meet in the City's current code.

Penning asked about apartments. Straite said that two contractors have asked where
they could build apartments. He showed them where the mixed-use zone is and showed
it would require them to-have commercial use too. None have pursued.

Straite shared that the Staie requires electric parking only spaces, which will be less
parking for multi-families. The State will also require that a parking space is paid for
separately in multifamily developments. The belief is that if it is complicated less people
will want to drive.

Straite said housing has slowed down in the City but industrial is coming.

Straite restated that the consensus of the Commission was to wait on any code updates
for parking lot updates.

Kreitman returned to the previous discussion, explaining the City's requirements for design
standards in the code to meet International Building Code and International Fire Code
requirements with regards to safety for industries using chemicails.

Young expressed his concern about the non-routine process. Kreitman said he talked with
Wilbur-Ellis and the third-party that will do the process, this is all they do. He said that there
may be specific things that the City wants on site for monitoring the area. He added that
they must meet all the EPA, OSHA and Fire Code requirements.

6|Page
Page 7 of 20



Young asked if an alarm for the community would be required. Kreitman said it may be
one of the requirements.

Kreitman shared that codes are immediately updated and revised to put safeguards in
place.

Young shared where a previous jurisdiction built a daycare on the backside of chemical
tank. He asked if the City has any safeguards to protect from these types of situations.
Straite said the City has criteria that says they can’t have detrimental impacts and would
be used in those types of cases.

F. Planning Update 7:25 p.m.
None

ADJOURNMENT: Meeting adjourned by Commission Vice-Chair Canate at 7:25 p.m.

Respectfully submitted: Reviewed by:
Sheena Dickerman Matt Straite
City Recorder Community Development Director

*Documents discussed or presented at the meeting that are not in the agenda packet are
archived in the record. The documents are available by emailing cityclerk@cityofmillersburg.org

7|Page
Page 8 of 20



m City of Millersburg November 29, 2022
=== STAFF REPORT:

¥ I I CITY OF I
A COMMUNITY LINKING
AGRICULTURE AND INDUSTRY

File No: DC 22-05 Adoption of a nhew Housing Chapter for the Comprehensive
Plan.

Proposal: The City of Millersburg is proposing to amend the Comprehensive Plan by replacing
the existing Housing Chapter with an all-new chapter. The proposed change includes new
goals and policies and an updated background section for the Housing Chapter. The project
proposes the following action':

e Adoption of a new Housing Chapter for the Comprehensive Plan
(Comprehensive Plan Text amendment)

. BACKGROUND
A. Applicant: City of Millersburg
B. Location: City Wide

C. Review Type: The proposed Comprehensive Plan Housing Chapter Amendment (DC
22-05) requires a hearing before the Planning Commission whereby the Commission
makes a recommendation to the City Council. A subsequent hearing before the City
Council is required for a final action, including the repeal of all existing goals and
policies that created the current housing chapter, and adoption of a new ordinance
that amends the Comprehensive Plan. Any appeal of the City Council’s decision
relating to this matter will be considered by the Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals
(LUBA).

D. Public Notice and Hearing: Notice has been provided to the State through the
Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD), published in the
Democrat Harold on November 7, 2022, and posted at City Hall. A notice was
published to the DLCD on November 1, 2022. The notice was posted in City Hall on
November 7, 2022. Information related to the hearing is posted on the City’s website
here - http://cityofmillersbrg.org/planning-commision/.

E. Review Ciriteria: Per Article 5 §5.11.030, the proposed Comprehensive Plan text
amendments must be consistent with all applicable decision criteria. Each criteria is
discussed in Section Il.

F. Background: The Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 1976 and has seen two small
revisions since then. Usually, these plans are refreshed every 10-20 years based on a
critical mass of updated data, new planning efforts, and technical analyses.

The City has been planning to embark on a significant update to the Comprehensive

1 This will also require the repeal of all Ordinances that created or altered the existing housing chapter.

DC 22-05- New Comprehensive Plan Housing Chapter Page 1 of 7
Staff Report

Page 9 of 20



Plan, given that the City now has a newer Transportation System Plan, Sewer Master
Plan, Development Code, Parks Master Plan, Housing Needs Analysis and Buildable
Lands Inventory, and Economic Development Analysis. The City is beginning its
update to the Comprehensive Plan with a new Housing Chapter.

As such, the existing goals and policies of the current Housing Chapter are out of
date and no longer reflect changes in the housing market, shifting demographics,
as well as community preferences and priorities. The new Housing Chapter includes
policies that guide the City in planning for new neighborhoods, retaining the quality
and character of existing neighborhoods, and providing housing opportunity for all.
The new Housing Chapter will better align with the City’'s recent zoning and
development code changes. It does not propose any further amendments to zoning
designations or development code at this fime.

The new Housing Chapter opens many new and exciting opportunities. For
example, the new Chapter includes policies that protect the rural character of
Millersburg’s large lot residential lands while prioritizing UGB expansion areas for the
development of new master-planned, mixed-use communities that are highly
walkable and serviceable with public transit. The new Housing Chapter provides
policy direction to inform public investments and manage the effects of growth over
the next 20 years.

The new Housing Chapter of the Comprehensive Plan is attached for review and
approval.

Il CRITERION

This section contains all applicable City and State provisions that apply to the proposed
Comprehensive Plan amendment and how each provision is met.

A. CITY OF MILLERSBURG DEVELOPMENT CODE CRITERIA

Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan text are required to satisfy the following criteria.
These come from Section 5.11.030 of the existing Millersburg Development Code.

Decision Criteria (1). There are no negative impacts of the proposed amendment on land
use and development patterns within the city, as measured by:

(a) Traffic generation and circulation patterns

ANALYSIS: To mitigate the negative impacts on traffic generation and circulation
patfterns, new housing policy language ensures land uses allow for the efficient
provision of public facilities and fransportation networks, and there is coordination
among partners and service providers to develop infrastructure that supports
residential development. Additional policies commit the City to promoting the
development of new housing in areas with access to services, amenities, and
transportation connections in order to lessen the impact on infrastructure.
Additionally, there are no proposed changes to the Comprehensive Plan Map or

DC 22-05- New Comprehensive Plan Housing Chapter Page 2 of 7
Staff Report

Page 10 of 20



Zoning Map at this time. Therefore, the density of the City is not changing as a result
of this new chapter. The policies may result in eventual changes to density as the
City grows, any changes needed to the transportation system at that time will be
addressed at that time.

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the required criteria.
(b) Demand for public facilities and services

ANALYSIS: To mitigate increased demand for public facilities and services, new
housing policy laonguage promotes the housing development in areas with existing
access to facilities and services, or where efficient provision of facilities can occur.
Policy language also directs the development of new master-planned, mixed-use
communities in key areas, increasing the economies of scale when providing any
new public facilities and services. Policy language also promotes the assessment of
residential land needs relative to employment land needs to ensure a balanced tax
base that can support the cost of infrastructure.

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the required criteria.
(c) Level of park and recreation facilities

ANALYSIS: To mitigate increased demand for parks and recreation facilities, new
housing policy language ensures coordination among partners and service providers
to develop infrastructure such as parks and recreation facilities that supports
residential development. Additionally, the City has a park's master plan that is
designed to grow parks and open space resources as the City grows. The new
housing policies are fully consistent with the parks master plan.

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the required criteria.
(d) Economic activities

ANALYSIS: New housing policies are crafted to support Millersburg’s economy
through language that promotes a greater variety of housing choices to support the
needs of the City's workforce. Policy language also promotes greater economic
activity by ensuring a balanced ratio of jobs to housing through regular assessments
of residential land needs relative to employment land needs.

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the required criteria.
(e) Protection and use of natural resources

ANALYSIS: There are no changes proposed to the natural resources chapter. New
housing policies are crafted to protect natural resources by supporting infill
development where quality and compatibility can be maintained. In addition,
policy language supports the development of master-planned, mixed-use
communities that are highly walkable and serviceable with public transit, lessening

DC 22-05- New Comprehensive Plan Housing Chapter Page 3 of 7
Staff Report

Page 11 of 20



the impact on natural resources by encouraging higher intensity development.
FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the required criteria.

(f) Compliance of the proposal with existing adopted special purpose plans or
programs.

ANALYSIS: This criterion does not apply, as there are no existing adopted special
purpose plans or programs that apply to the Comprehensive Plan Housing Chapter.

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, this criterion does not apply.

Decision Criteria (2). A demonstrated need exists for the proposed amendment.

ANALYSIS: The updated goals and policies of the new Housing Chapter are informed by
data from the 2022 Housing Needs Analysis. The HNA indicates that the Millersburg
population is forecast to grow from 2,937 people in 2021 to 4,883 people in 2041, an
increase of 1,946 people. The growth of 1,946 people will result in demand for 719 new
dwelling units over the 20-year planning period, averaging 36 new dwelling units
annually. The forecast uses a 2.5% population increase rate; using actual historical trends
in the City the growth rate is 7%. Currently, Millersburg’s housing stock is predominantly
single-family detached housing units, but there will likely be a shift in the types of housing
that are needed in the future. The factors driving that shift include increasing State
regulafions and mandates, changes in demographics and decreases in housing
affordability. The aging of the Baby Boomers and the growth of younger and diversified
Millennial households is likely to result in increased demand for a wider variety of housing
that are affordable and appropriate for both the elderly and families with children. The
new housing chapter responds to this demonstrated need by including a new goal that
states the City will provide the opportunity for a full range of housing options in order to
meet the various needs and preferences of existing and future residents, while retaining
the character, quality and livability of Millersburg’s neighborhoods.

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the required criteria.

Decision Criteria (3). The proposed amendment complies with all applicable Statewide
Planning Goals and Administrative Rule requirements.

ANALYSIS: Of the 19 Statewide Planning Goals, Goals 1, 2, 10, 12 and 14 are applicable
to the proposed update to the Housing Chapter.

Goal 1 requires citizen involvement. This land use application is subject to a Millersburg
land use review, which includes a significant citizen involvement component. This
process has been established by the city and determined to be consistent with this goal.
The project included two rounds of community outreach to understand housing
preferences and priorities, which included activities such as online surveys, a public
meeting, and tabling at community events. In addition, the mandatory public notice of
the action and decision, and the hearings on this case before the Planning Commission

DC 22-05- New Comprehensive Plan Housing Chapter Page 4 of 7
Staff Report

Page 12 of 20



and City Council are all avenues of citizen participation.

Goal 2 requires that land use decisions 1) have an adequate factual base, 2) that
alternatives have been considered, and 3) that implementation measures are
consistent with and adequate to carry out the comprehensive plan. This Goal is
implemented by the Millersburg Development Code which requires that all Land Use
approvals follow the process outlined in Goal 2. This Land Use planning process was
utiized in drafting the proposed Housing Chapter, and the adoption of the
Comprehensive Plan Amendment also uses this established process. Alternatives have
been considered throughout the drafting of the updates and the proposed changes
will update the Housing Chapter of the Comprehensive Plan.

Goal 10 addresses housing in Oregon and provides guidelines for local governments to
follow in developing their local comprehensive land use plans and implementing
policies. Goal 10 requires incorporated cities to complete an inventory of buildable
residential lands and encourage the numbers of housing units in price and rent ranges
commensurate with the financial capabilities of its households. The City recently
completed a Buildable Lands Inventory (BLI) and Housing needs Analysis (HNA) in 2022
to inform the update to the Housing Chapter. The new housing policies state that the
City will plan for a 20-year supply of suitable land to meet housing needs through regular
monitoring and adjustments of available residential land, and identify opportunities to
ensure the housing supply includes a variety of housing types and unit sizes, in
appropriate locations in the City, that support a range of housing prices.

Goal 12, the Transportation Planning Rule (TPR), OAR 600-012-0060, requires that, where
an amendment to a comprehensive plan or zoning regulation would significantly affect
an existing or planned transportation facility, the local government shall put in place
measures that assure that allowed land uses are consistent with the function, capacity,
and performance standards of the facility. The proposed Housing Chapter does not, in
and of itself, propose any changes to an existing or planned fransportation facility.
However, the updated housing policies may have transportation impacts in future
growth areas, which will be addressed as part of land use review.

Goal 14, urbanization, administers Urban Growth Boundaries and assures that
development occurs within Cities. Goal 14 is supported by the adoption of this updated
Housing Chapter in that the city’s goals and policies related to residential development
will be timely and appropriate for any expansion efforts the city may undertake toward
urbanization.

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the required criteria.
Decision Criteria (4). The amendment is appropriate as measured by at least one of the
following criteria.

(a) It corrects identified error(s) in the provisions of the Plan;

ANALYSIS: This criterion does not apply, as there are no identified error(s) in the

DC 22-05- New Comprehensive Plan Housing Chapter Page 5 of 7
Staff Report

Page 13 of 20



provisions of the current Comprehensive Plan Housing Chapter.

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, this criterion does not apply.

(b) It represents a logical implementation of the Plan;

ANALYSIS: The current housing policies are out of date and don’'t reflect changes in
the housing market, shiffing demographics, as well as community preferences and
priorities. With the completion of the 2022 HNA and BLI, an update to the housing
chapter of the Comprehensive Plan represents a logical next step.

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the required criteria.
(c) It is mandated by changes in Federal, State, or local law;

ANALYSIS: While generally this criterion does not apply, recent statewide legislation
like House Bill 2001 and current rulemaking around Climate-Friendly and Equitable
Communities (CFEC) will impact Millersburg. The new housing chapter prepares for
the effects of new state law by promoting a greater variety of housing types (HB
2001) where appropriate and signaling the intent to provide for higher-density,
mixed-use development in new UGB expansion areas to respond to CFEC rules.

FINDING: Based on the analysis above, the project meets the required criteria.
(d) It is otherwise deemed by the City Council to be desirable, appropriate, and proper.

ANALYSIS: In late 2020, Millersburg City Council approved a request for funding
assistance through DLCD to update the Comprehensive Plan Housing Chapter,
deeming this project as an appropriate step to preparing a full revision of the
Comprehensive Plan.

FINDING: Generally, this criterion does not apply, however, the proposed text
amendments to the Comprehensive Plan will address possible impacts from
changes in state law.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION

Based on the above findings of fact, the proposed amendments satisfy the
applicable criteria. Staff recommends that the Planning Commission
recommend approval of Application No. DC 22-05 to the City Council.

STAFF RECOMMENDED MOTION FOR TO THE CITY COUNCIL (assuming the
Planning Commission recommends approval)

Based on the findings of fact in the staff report, the proposed amendment
satisfies the applicable criteria. The City Council hereby approves DC 22-05
and adopts Ordinance No. 201-22.

DC 22-05- New Comprehensive Plan Housing Chapter Page 6 of 7
Staff Report

Page 14 of 20



V. EXHIBITS

A. Proposed Comprehensive Plan Housing Chapter Text Amendments
Hard copy available upon request or by download-
https://www.cityofmillersburg.org/planning/page/dc-22-05-comprehensive-
plan-amendment-new-housing-chapter-comprehensive-plan

B. Public Hearing Notice

DC 22-05- New Comprehensive Plan Housing Chapter Page 7 of 7
Staff Report

Page 15 of 20



Section 9.400

GOAL 10: HOUSING



COMPREHENSIVE PLAN | CITY OF MILLERSBURG

Y

OVERVIEW

Goal 10 addresses housing in Oregon and provides guidelines for local governments to
follow in developing their local comprehensive land use plans and implementing
policies. Goal 10 requires incorporated cities to complete an inventory of buildable
residential lands and encourage the numbers of housing units in price and rent ranges
commensurate with the financial capabilities of its households [read full text version of
Goal 10: OAR 660-015-0000(10)].

Housing is at the core of vibrant communities, supporting industry, job growth, services
and City amenities. As communities change and grow over time, the City of Millersburg
must plan for housing that meets the needs of current and future community members.
Planning efforts are guided by information about the housing market and the factors that
affect residential development, including changes in the housing market and shifting
demographics, as well as community preferences and priorities. Understanding trends
and community goals is key to informing the City’s policy development related to
housing and options for addressing unmet housing needs in Millersburg. As of 2022,
data indicates the following key findings regarding current and future housing needs in
Millersburg (2022 Housing Needs Analysis):

* Millersburg’s population is forecast to continue growing. The Millersburg population
is forecast to grow from 2,937 people in 2021 to 4,883 people in 2041, an increase
of 1,946 people. This population growth will occur at an average annual growth rate
of 2.6%. By comparison, Millersburg added 2,199 new residents between 2000 and
2020, at an average annual growth rate of 7.7%.

* Millersburg needs to plan for 719 new dwelling units. The growth of 1,946 people
will result in demand for 719 new dwelling units over the 20-year planning period,
averaging 36 new dwelling units annually. Currently, Millersburg’s housing stock is
predominantly single-family detached housing units.

+ There will likely be a shift in the types of housing that are needed in Millersburg in
the future. The factors driving that shift include changes in demographics and
decreases in housing affordability. The aging of the Baby Boomers and the growth
of younger and diversified Millennial households is likely to result in increased
demand for a wider variety of housing that are affordable and appropriate for both
the elderly and families with children.




COMPREHENSIVE PLAN | CITY OF MILLERSBURG

GOAL

The City shall provide the opportunity for a full range of housing options in order to meet the
various needs and preferences of existing and future residents, while retaining the
character, quality and livability of Millersburg’s neighborhoods.

POLICIES

Plan for new neighborhoods.

POLICY 1 Plan for a 20-year supply of suitable land for Millersburg to meet housing needs through regular
monitoring and adjustments of available residential land.

POLICY 2 Identify opportunities to ensure the housing supply includes a variety of housing types and unit
sizes, in appropriate locations in the City, that support a range of housing prices.

POLICY 3 Encourage housing that is of a design and quality compatible with the neighborhood in which it is
located.
POLICY 4 Promote the development of new housing in areas with access to services, amenities, and

transportation connections.

POLICY 5 Encourage construction practices that result in high-quality development and reduce the industry’s
impact on the environment.

POLICY 6 Encourage innovative design and planning concepts to reduce the cost of housing and services
through code review procedures.

POLICY 7 Ensure a balanced ratio of jobs to housing by regularly assessing residential land needs relative to
employment land needs.

POLICY 8 Coordinate with partners and service providers to develop infrastructure that supports residential
development.

POLICY 9 Utilize UGB expansion areas for the development of new master-planned, mixed-use communities
that are highly walkable and serviceable with public transit.

] Page 18 of 20




COMPREHENSIVE PLAN | CITY OF MILLERSBURG

Retain the quality and character of existing neighborhoods.

POLICY 10

POLICY 11

POLICY 12

POLICY 13

Preserve the quality of existing neighborhoods and ensure that new neighborhoods and infill
partitions and divisions fit with Millersburg’s character and landform.

Retain the rural character of Millersburg’s large lot residential lands north of NE Conser Road and
west of NE Old Salem Road.

Maintain high-quality housing conditions through enforcement of codes and ordinances.

Ensure land uses allow for the efficient provision of public facilities and transportation networks.

Provide housing for all.

POLICY 14

POLICY 15

POLICY 16

POLICY 17

POLICY 18

POLICY 19

POLICY 20

POLICY 21

POLICY 22

POLICY 23

POLICY 24

Provide opportunities for housing at price and rent levels commensurate with the needs of current
and anticipated residents.

Support the need for all citizens of the community to obtain adequate housing regardless of their
income, age, race, religion, sex or ethnic background.

Support homeownership and rental opportunities for all housing types.

Provide opportunities for elderly residents to age in place by encouraging the development of
housing types that are affordable and accessible, such as accessory dwelling units and
retirement communities.

Collaborate with services, programs and organizations that provide opportunities for development
of lower cost housing in areas with access to jobs, public transportation, open spaces, schools,
and supportive services and amenities.

Maintain information and resources on available housing, financing programs, and assistance
programs in both the public and private sector that are suited to the needs of the community.

Encourage the land use code to include “clear and objective” standards for housing development
and does not have the effect of discouraging needed housing through unreasonable cost or delay
or reducing the proposed housing density already allowed by zoning.

Ensure existing manufactured home parks shall continue to be allowed within the locational
criteria of the land use code and protected from redevelopment to maintain Millersburg’s existing
affordable housing stock.

Streamline the permitting process to reduce cost and delay of new housing units.

Promote the development of accessory dwelling units as a means to contribute to the overall
housing stock and rental market.

Allow manufactured homes on individual lots to increase housing choices.




m NOTICE OF PUBLIC REVIEW

S December 6, 2022, 6:00 p.m.
Millersburg And December 13, 2022, 6:30 p.m.
AGRICGLTURE AN INDUSTRY Hearing will be in person and

by phone/computer.
See Agenda on the City website for details.

The City of Millersburg will hold a PLANNING COMMISSION hearing on December 6, 2022
at the above tfime and place, and a CITY COUNCIL hearing on December 13, 2022 at the
above time and place to consider the action described below. The action may be heard
later than the time indicated, depending on the agenda schedule. Interested parties are
invited to send written comment or attend the hearing. A staff report relating to the
proposal will be available seven (7) days prior to the first public hearing. For further
information, contact Millersburg City Hall at (458) 233-6306.

The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you need any special
accommodations to attend or participate in the meeting, please notify City Hall twenty-
four (24) hours before the meeting.

APPLICANT: City initiated
LOCATION: City wide
CRITERIA: Millersburg Development Code; Section 5.11. These criteria also

require compliance with the applicable Statewide Planning Goals
and Oregon Administrative Rules, 660-004, 660-012, 660-014, 660-015,
660-022, and Oregon Revised Statutes 197.732.

FILE No.: DC 22-05

REQUEST: Comprehensive Plan Amendment DC 22-05 proposes to revise and
replace the Comprehensive Plan Housing Chapter. Grant funding
was provided by the DLCD for this effort. This is infended to be the
first step in a full revision of the City’'s Comprehensive Plan. See this
ink for more detfal and new  housing chapter:
https://www.cityofmillersburg.org/planning/page/land-use-matters-
application

Page 20 of 20





